






















 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

1 

 

   

Committee Members 
Lindsey B. Counsell – Chair • Tom Lee – Vice Chair • Vacant – Clerk/Historical Commission • Terry Duenas – At Large • Katherine Garofoli – At Large 

Stephen Robichaud– Planning Board • Tom Lee – Conservation Commission • Vacant – Recreation Commission 
   Deborah Converse – Housing Authority • Farley Lewis – At Large • Kristin Terkelsen – Town Council Liaison   

Monday, March 17, 2025 

Regular Public Hearing DRAFT Minutes 

Meeting Held Via Zoom 

5:30 PM 

 

Lindsey Counsell – Chair Present 

Tom Lee-Vice Chair Present 

Katherine Garofoli Present 

Deborah Converse Present  

Stephen Robichaud  Present 

Farley Lewis Present 

Terry Duenas Present 

 
Call to Order: 
Notice of Recording:  With a quorum present, Chair Lindsey Counsell called the meeting 
to order at 5:30 pm and read: “Please note that tonight’s meeting is recorded and 
broadcast on Channel 18 and, in accordance with MGL Chapter 30A, s.20, I must inquire 
whether anyone else is taping this meeting and to please make their presence known.”  
No one present was recording the meeting. 
 
ROLL CALL: Terry Duenas (present), Katherine Garofoli (present), Tom Lee (present), 
Deb Converse (present), Farley Lewis (present), Steve Robichaud (present), and 
Lindsey Counsell (present).  
 
Housing Update – Planning & Development Director James Kupfer 
Planning and Development Director, James Kupfer narrated the PowerPoint presentation 
“Town of Barnstable Multi-Family Housing Development Report” and explained he would 
highlight the most important points.  He noted that there are three tools that are currently 
available that help with the creation of affordable housing: programs such as those the 
Trust has for predevelopment and development funds, incentives such as HDIP Tax 
Incentive Program, and recent Regulatory changes.   
 
Mr. Kupfer said that the spread sheet and report for multifamily housing covers eight 
years from 2017 – 2024 and is available on the Town’s webpage under the Housing tab.  
A map showing where multi-family housing has been produced since 2017 was depicted 
and it was noted that a majority of the housing development is in Hyannis downtown 
likely because the available programs, incentives, and zoning amendments all facilitated 
the creation of housing in this area.   
 
Mr. Kupfer continued to narrate the PowerPoint presentation with slides depicting total 
units created between 2017-2023 totaling 216, with 13 affordable units with 8 

Town of Barnstable 

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 

www.town.barnstable.ma.us/CommunityPreservation 

Email: CommunityPreservationCommittee@town.barnstable.ma.us 

 

  

http://www.town.barnstable.ma.us/CommunityPreservation


 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

2 

 

Regulatory Agreements required.  In 2023 – 2024 there were 637 total units created with 
118 affordable units without the need for Regulatory Agreements because the regulatory 
amendments in downtown Hyannis the projects by right.  He also noted that there are 
three large residential developments outside of the downtown area in Independence 
Park.   
 
Next Mr. Kupfer depicted a slide listing housing projects that are currently in the 
permitting stage describing each with site plans and elevations.  He explained that there 
are a total of 156 units in the permitting stage with 13 proposed to be deed restricted as 
affordable.  He said that the town is looking at ways to tighten the Inclusionary Ordinance 
to increase the percentage of affordable units required in a development.   
 
The next slides depicted projects that totaled 181 units that have been permitted with 90 
deed restricted as affordable; and projects that are under construction that totaled 220 
units with 25 affordable.  The slides for each project included site plans and elevations. 
 
Farley Lewis expressed concern that the architecture of the developments depicted in 
the PowerPoint presentation were not more diverse.  Director Kupfer said that the 
Hyannis Main Street Historic Commission works diligently to improve the aesthetics of 
projects in that district noting that this usually adds a cost to the project.  There was 
discussion regarding the use of green alternative sources of energy and Mr. Kupfer 
shared that a few Town Councilors have been successfully stressing high efficiency 
structures when developers come to the Town Council seeking tax incentive approval.   
 
Steve Robichaud said that the report was excellent and noted that the Massachusetts 
Building Code already has intense minimum thresholds for high efficiency construction 
requirements.  He said that many of the sites that were being redeveloped were eye 
sores and were previously either vacant, dirt, or closed and said he thought a lot of the 
new development shared in PowerPoint was beautiful.  He credited the Main Street 
Historic Commission with significantly improving the aesthetics of projects that are within 
their purview.  He stressed the need for housing and noted that a lot of units are being 
generated from derelict properties that will now contribute to the community. 
 
Deb Converse said the report was very informative and asked if there was a program 
that could depict overall what Hyannis would look like once all the proposed 
development was constructed.  Mr. Kupfer explained there is modeling software that 
would enable the public to visualize what Hyannis would look like after construction and 
a cost-effective way of doing this is being explored.  Ms. Converse asked if there will be 
enough tenants available for the market rate units and asked if a market analysis is 
required for housing developments.   James explained that if developers are looking for 
incentives or using programs through the Affordable Housing Trust, the proposed market 
unit rents are identified.  He said most recently the development behind Home Depot had 
an analysis that indicated there is sufficient need for those market rate units.  Ms. 
Converse said that long ago to receive any kind of public funding, the provision of 25% 
affordable units was required, which has changed to the 10% we have now.  All agreed 
that a greater percentage of affordable units needs to be required within residential 
development. 
 
Terry Duenas asked if there is a livability package that would include a grocery store.  Mr. 
Kupfer confirmed that in the downtown Hyannis area, a grocery store is the number one 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

3 

 

need for making Hyannis a walkable community.  He said that as the Planning Director 
he speaks with a lot of business owners across the Cape and outside of the Cape and 
said he consistently hears that there is not enough year-round population.  James noted 
that with the new influx of year-round population in the downtown Hyannis area, there 
could now be a good opportunity for some uses that we typically are not seeing such as 
a small grocery store.    
 
Minutes:    

• Approval of the Draft Community Preservation Committee Regular Meeting 
Minutes from February 24, 2025.   
  

The motion of Tom Lee was seconded by Deb Converse to approve the meeting 
minutes with one revision as noted.   
Roll Call Vote: Terry Duenas (yes), Katherine Garofoli (yes), Tom Lee (yes), Deb 
Converse (yes), Farley Lewis (yes), Steve Robichaud (yes), and Lindsey Counsell 
(yes).  7 yes – 0 no.  Motion Carried. 

 
  

Letters of Intent:  

• A Letter of Intent has been received from the South Congregational Church 
requesting Community Preservation Historic Preservation funds for the cleaning, 
restoring and resetting of approximately 33 gravestones and markers with historic 
and cultural significance located in the cemetery on the church grounds.  The 
burial ground is listed on the State Register of Historic Places. 

 
Ms. Jean Mansur, a member of the South Congregational Church, explained that the 
South Congregational Church would like to repair and restore the cemetery behind the 
church that is in a state of disrepair.  She said it is a historic place and important to the 
Village of Centerville and the Town of Barnstable and should be preserved, saying it 
gives a sense of place and tells the story of the Town as there are many prominent 
families buried there including sea captains and cranberry growers.  She said the church 
has received 3 bids for restoration of 33 gravestones, with the lowest being $10,500 but 
would have a better idea of cost after a planned site visit later that week.  She said that 
tours highlighting the history of the town have been envisioned.  She said the cemetery 
is in the historic district and deserves to look much better than it does. 
 
Mr. Tim Tudor, Project Manager, said that a survey of the entire property is being 
conducted, which has never been done before.  He noted a boy scout troop that will help 
with the project and specifically mentioned two Eagle Scout candidates who are 
interested in helping with portions of the restoration and repair of the stones.  He said 
there is a leadership meeting on Thursday and confirmed the CPC’s suggestion that a 
consultant is needed at a cost of $2,500 for preparation of the MHC required Form E.   
  
Chair Counsell explained there are several steps required to move the Letter of Intent 
forward confirming that a consultant for Form E is needed for the Massachusetts Historic 
Commission to approve the requisite preservation restriction.  He noted that what was 
done at the Unitarian Cemetery in Hyannis will be required for this project on a smaller 
scale.  He said that the Legal Department will confirm eligibility for CPA funds, however, 
did not anticipate a problem as the cemetery is listed on the State Register of Historic 
Places.  Chair Counsell noted that the Letter of Intent proposes the preservation of 33 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

4 

 

stones, however a proposal for a full evaluation would be needed.  After brief discussion, 
it was decided that Chair Counsell would visit the site with Mr. Tudor on Thursday.  
 
 

• A Letter of Intent has been received from Odd Fellows Lodge requesting $69,360 
in Community Preservation Historic Preservation funds for preservation and 
restoration work including roof, gutters, trim replacement, foundation repair and 
waterproofing.  The building is listed on the State Register of Historic Places. 

 
Mr. Paul Davies, a member of the Odd Fellows Lodge, noted that the Odd Fellows 
building, owned by the membership, is a historic building in serious need of repair, 
however the membership lacks the necessary funds.  Chair Counsell noted that the 
Legal Department is reviewing the Letter of Intent to confirm eligibility for CPA funds as 
there were questions regarding sufficient public access/benefit which is a requirement.  
Mr. Davies noted that the 2nd floor is the large hall open to the public with an elevator.  
He said there is a commercial kitchen in the building where community dinners had been 
held and said he envisioned the hall will again be used as a place where neighbors in 
the downtown Hyannis area could meet and have an affordable meal.  Chair Counsell 
explained that a full assessment of the exterior of the building by a preservation architect 
is needed as well as the drafting of the required preservation restriction approved by the 
Massachusetts Historic Commission.  Mr. Davies inquired if there is shorter term funding 
available for the most critical repairs, however Chair Counsell explained that CPC is not 
allowed to fund temporary work, and the building report will direct the historic 
preservation and restoration of the building.  It was confirmed that step one is to get 
pricing for a preservation consultant to analyze the building and provide a plan outlining 
the work that is needed.  The CPC will hire the attorney to draft the preservation 
restriction.  The address of the Odd Fellows Lodge is 354 Main Street, Hyannis and the 
store front tenants are Ben and Jerry’s and the Boarding House.    
 
Applications: 
None received. 

 
Correspondence Received 

• Report from the Affordable Housing Growth and Development Trust Fund Board 
Regarding Activities Related to the Award of Community Preservation Funds for 
End of Calendar Year 2024.  

 

Project Updates: 

• Smith’s Creek Conservation Restriction CPC Application has been forwarded for 
Town Council public hearing. 

• The West Barnstable Railroad Depot Restoration CPC Application has been 
referred to the Town Manager for Town Council public hearing. 

• Cotuit Highground Conservation Restriction has received approval from the Open 
Space Committee and Conservation Commission and will be referred to the Town 
Council.   

• Conservation Restrictions for the Harju and Prince Avenue properties have been 
requested to be placed on an upcoming Town Council agenda for approval.   

• DPW Applications are anticipated for the April 28, 2025, CPC meeting. 

• The Affordable Housing Trust Administrator is anticipated to review the End of 
Year Affordable Housing Trust Report at the April 28, 2025, CPC meeting. 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

5 

 

• A Letter of Intent is anticipated to be received from the Affordable Housing Trust 
for the April 28, 2025, CPC meeting. 

• Centerville Historical Museum has asked for a postponement of their Letter of 
Intent for the Tin Shop.   The Legal Depart will need to determine eligibility. 

 
Member Discussion: 

• Request from Planning & Development Department for up to $10,000 in 
Community Preservation Administration funds for a consultant to research public 
rights for portions of Boulder Road and Flint Rock Road in support of the Town’s 
efforts to extend the Cape Cod Pathways Program. 
 

Farley Lewis confirmed that this request came through the Open Space Committee.  
Chair Counsell noted that there is a missing 300-yard section of the trail that would link it 
to the new bikeway to connect to Yarmouth that public access would need to be 
determined as there have been challenges from the neighbors.  He said that a title 
search for these ca. 1700s ancient ways is needed to determine if there are existing 
public rights to connect the trail sections. 
 
After discussion, it was decided that a title search is the only way to resolve this issue as 
there are many opposing opinions, including a previous opinion from the Town’s Legal 
Department that public rights do exist.   
 
The motion of Tom Lee was seconded by Steve Robichaud to approve the 
payment of up to $10,000 in CPC Administration funds for title research on 
Boulder and Flint Rock Roads to determine if public access rights exists. 
Roll Call Vote: Terry Duenas (yes), Katherine Garofoli (yes), Tom Lee (yes), Deb 
Converse (yes), Farley Lewis (yes), Steve Robichaud (yes), and Lindsey Counsell 
(yes).  7 yes –0 no.  Motion carried. 

 

• After discussion, the CPC members agreed that the April 28, 2025, Community 
Preservation Committee meeting would be held remotely.   

 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Adjournment: 
The motion of Tom Lee was seconded by Deb Converse to adjourn the meeting. 
Roll Call Vote: Terry Duenas (yes), Katherine Garofoli (yes), Tom Lee (yes), Deb 
Converse (yes), Farley Lewis (yes), Steve Robichaud (yes), and Lindsey Counsell 
(yes). 7 yes – 0 no.  Motion carried.   Meeting adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 
 
 
 

Next CPC Regular Meeting Scheduled April 28, 2025, 5:30 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

6 

 

List of documents/exhibits used by the Committee at the meeting: 
 

Exhibit 1 –CPC Regular Meeting Agenda, March 17, 2025. 
Exhibit 2 – Draft CPC Meeting Minutes - February 24, 2025  
Exhibit 3 – PowerPoint – Town of Barnstable Multi-Family Housing Development Report 
Exhibit 4 - Affordable Housing Growth & Development Trust End of Year Report – 2024. 
Exhibit 5 – Letter of Intent – South Congregational Church, CPC Historic Preservation 
Exhibit 6 - Letter of Intent – Odd Fellows Lodge, CPC Historic Preservation  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Ellen M. Swiniarski 
Community Preservation Coordinator 

Planning & Development Department 
 
Please Note:  The list of matters is those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at 
the meeting. Not all items listed may be discussed, and other items not listed may also be brought up for 
discussion to the extent permitted by law.  It is possible that, if it votes so, the Committee may go into 
Executive Session for specified allowable reasons. The Committee may also act on items in an order other 
than they appear on this agenda.  

 
* Public files are available for viewing during normal business hours at the Community Preservation 

office located at 367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 





 

1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585
 

 

        April 14, 2025 

To the Members of the Town of Barnstable Community Preservation Committee: 

I am writing to submit this Letter of Intent for Community Preservation Act funding to preserve 
an ecologically important parcel of land on Mill Pond in Marstons Mills. 

Project Name:  Mill Pond Preserve Land Protection Project 
Owner:   Kenara Adelheidis Webster (f/k/a Kenneth Arthur Webster, Jr.) 
Location:  3640 Falmouth Road (Route 28), Marstons Mills 
Acres:    13 acres 
Map & Parcel: 058/012 
Purchase Price:  $1,200,000 
CPA Request: $600,000 
Timeline: Interim closing June 2025, BLT closing January 2026 
 

The Mill Pond Preserve Land Protection Project will permanently protect 13 acres of 
ecologically significant pond-front property on Mill Pond in the village of Marstons Mills. 
Barnstable Land Trust has an agreement with the current property owner for the purchase of 
the property and seeks Community Preservation Act funding in support of the acquisition. This 
13-acre pond-front property is a high-priority for protection due to the following important 
conservation values: 

• The property includes significant frontage on Mill Pond in historic Marstons Mills. Mill 
Pond dates back to the 17th century when part of the Marstons Mill River was dammed 
to power a gristmill on its shores. Mill Pond is one of the most photographed bodies of 
water on Cape Cod. Tucked into the intersection of Routes 28 and 149, it serves as a 
scenic wildlife refuge and an active herring run for fish migrating upstream to spawn in 
Middle Pond. 

• The 750± feet of pond frontage provides a crucial vegetated buffer, helping protect 
water quality and providing vital wildlife habitat. 

• Areas of the property are mapped as NHESP Priority Habitat of Rare Species, BioMap 
Rare Species Core Habitat, and BioMap Regional Rare Species Habitat. Protection 
of this property will safeguard areas critical to the long-term survival of vulnerable 
species and their habitats. 

• The property is designated as BioMap Aquatic Core Habitat and Buffer, which 
includes freshwater habitats with the highest diversity of rare aquatic species, the 
strongest anadromous (migratory) fish runs, and habitats most resilient to a warming 



1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585
 

climate. These areas represent some of the most structurally and functionally intact 
freshwater ecosystems in the state. 

• The property lies within mapped BioMap Local Landscape Blocks, which consist of 
large, unfragmented areas of land and water that provide habitat for wide-ranging 
species, support dynamic natural processes, and enhance ecosystem resilience. 

• The property is bordered by 400 acres of existing protected open space, including Town-
owned wellhead protection land to the north and west, and BLT-owned land across the 
pond to the east. These connections offer the opportunity to extend and improve trail 
networks for public passive recreation. 

• Nearly half of the property falls within the MassDEP Zone II Wellhead Protection Area, 
making it crucial for protecting water quality for drinking water supply. 

• The Marstons Mills River is the primary tributary within the Three Bays Watershed. 
Currently, the water quality of the Three Bays estuary is severely impaired and routinely 
exceeds water quality standards for nitrogen. The causes of this impairment include 
septic system leaching, stormwater runoff, and development in surrounding areas. 
Protecting this 13-acre property will help preserve the watershed from further 
degradation by preventing development along Mill Pond’s shoreline. 

 
Timeline for Preserving the Land:  

Barnstable Land Trust, Inc. (BLT) has an agreement with the current owner for the fee simple 
acquisition of the 13-acre property. Due to the accelerated timeline for closing required by the 
current owner, BLT’s nonprofit partner, The Compact of Cape Cod Conservation Trust, Inc. 
(The Compact), has agreed to pre-acquire the property on BLT’s behalf by June 30, 2025, for a 
purchase price of $1,200,000. This intermediate step will allow BLT to launch the fundraising 
campaign necessary to fully fund the property acquisition. BLT plans to acquire the property in 
early 2026 and grant a conservation restriction to the Town of Barnstable, ensuring permanent 
preservation of the land.  

Funding Request:  

Barnstable Land Trust seeks $600,000 in Community Preservation Act funds. Barnstable 
Land Trust will apply for an MA Conservation Partnership grant in June 2025 for $425,000 to 
help fund the acquisition. In compliance with the CPA requirements, the Town of Barnstable 
will be granted the conservation restriction on the property.  

 
 
 
 



1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585
 

Locus Map 

  

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely,  

 

Janet Milkman 
Executive Director 
508-771-2585 x 101 
 

  










P.O. Box 121, Cotuit, MA 02635


April 23, 2025


Dear CPC Chairman Lindsey Counsell,


I am writing on behalf of the Cotuit-Santuit Civic Association (CSCA) to request a favorable 
outcome for the Cotuit Memorial Park project. The condition of our park, which is central to 
Cotuit village, has been deteriorating for quite some time. The mature trees in the center are all 
dying and the tree warden has said they need to be removed. The paved paths throughout the 
park are crumbling, unsafe, and not ADA compliant. 


We have been working on plans for this park for about 10 years with the Town, specifically with 
Mark Marinaccio and his team. They have designed a much needed and simple upgrade to the 
park that will make this green village asset beautiful and welcoming again. For your 
information, we did make it onto the Town Counsel top 10 capital project just before COVID 
shut down all spending.


We hope you and the committee will vote to move this project through to the next phase at 
your upcoming meeting on Monday, April 28th.


Regards, 

Carol Zais, President

Cotuit-Santuit Civic Association

csca@cotuitcivicassociation.org


Cc Mark Marinaccio, Seth Burdick, Ellen Swiniarski 

mailto:csca@cotuitcivicassociation.org


10 Langley Road
Suite 202
Newton Centre, MA 02459

T 617.916.5661
F 617.477.2350
bcausa.com

April 17, 2025

Paul Davies
Odd Fellow Lodge 226
354 Main Street
Hyannis, MA 02601

Re:   Odd Fellows Building
354 Main Street, Hyannis, MA

        Exterior Conditions Assessment and Comprehensive Report

Dear Paul:

Building Conservation Associates, Inc. (BCA) is pleased to submit this proposal to the
Odd Fellows Lodge 226 to provide an exterior conditions assessment, treatment
recommendations, identification of priorities and phasing options for the Odd Fellows
Building. We have performed this service at similar historic masonry buildings including
the Barnstable Superior Courthouse in Barnstable, MA, Cambridge Fire Department
Headquarters in Cambridge, MA, the Benton Library in Belmont, MA,  Flint Public
Library in Middleton, MA. and St. Paul’s Church in Nantucket, MA.

Scope of Work:

Conditions Assessment
1. Conduct a thorough existing conditions assessment to:

a. Identify all materials on the building – brick masonry, wood, roofing,
metal flashing, windows, etc.

b. Determine types of deterioration at each material type
c. Identify any sources of water infiltration
d. Identify any areas of structural movement

2. Conduct a hands-on survey from the ground using high-powered binoculars.
3. Develop a systemic understanding of how the building is performing as a whole,

and how each system’s deterioration impacts the other systems.

Treatment Recommendations
1. Develop treatment recommendations for each material type and deterioration

mechanism observed.
2. Provide specific materials and methods for restoration.

BUILDING CONSERVATION ASSOCIATES INC



Priorities and Phasing
1. Establish three priority levels for repair.  The three levels can be defined as

Priority 1: Emergency; Priority 2: Restoration, and Priority 3: Stand Alone
2. Establish potential phasing options.  The report will outline options for breaking

the work into logical discrete projects.

Comprehensive Report
1. All of the information described above will be compiled into a comprehensive

narrative report, illustrated with photographs.

Fees
BCA will provide the services above for a lump sum fee of $4,800.00.  The fee includes
all direct expenses.

Terms And Conditions
1. Attachment A: Terms and Conditions of Professional Service is attached to this

contract and incorporated herein by this reference.
2. This proposal is good for 60 days from the date of offer. BCA reserves the right

to withdraw this letter of agreement if not executed and returned to our office
within 60 days of the date of this letter.

If the foregoing is acceptable please sign below and return an executed copy for our
files. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions. Thank you for this
opportunity.

Offered by: Accepted by:

______________________________ __________________________
Building Conservation Associates, Inc. Odd Fellows Lodge 226
Lisa Harrington      Paul Davies
Director          

BUILDING CONSERVATION ASSOCIATES INC Page 2





 
 

C:\Users\swiniare\AppData\Local\Temp\RVEKw0Z5rcLh0Yiz.docx 

The Town of Barnstable 
Department of Public Works 

382 Falmouth Road, Hyannis, MA 02601 

508.790.6400 

  

 

  Mark R. Marinaccio, AIA 

          Town Architect 
 

April 15, 2025 
 
 
Mr. Lindsey Counsell, Chairman 
Community Preservation Committee 
Town of Barnstable 
367 Main Street – Third Floor 
Hyannis, MA 02630 
 
Re: National Guard Armory Exterior Restoration 
 
 
Dear Mr. Counsell: 
 
We are writing to formally apply to the Community Preservation Committee (CPC) to continue the 
phased restoration of the Hyannis Army National Guard Armory – Battery D building located at 225 
South Street in Hyannis. The requested funding of $2,900,000 will provide for the complete exterior 
restoration of the building envelope including: masonry repairs, windows, doors, ornamental wall-
mounted flagpoles, and signage, as well as provide for the necessary abatement of hazardous materials 
such as asbestos found in many building materials such as window caulking. 
 
This limited request for funding addresses the most critical needs of the building; the compromised 
exterior envelope and will once again make the building weather tight. The work provided for by the 
funding requested with this application will secure this important cultural and architectural resource, 
prevent any further costly deterioration of the facility, and pave the way for the future interior 
rehabilitation for much needed town services. 
 
We respectfully seek your approval of this application. 
 
 
Most sincerely, 
Town of Barnstable Department of Public Works 
 
 
 
Mark R. Marinaccio, AIA 
Town Architect 







CPC APPLICATION (page  1 )  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submission Date: April 15, 2025 

Project Title: Hyannis Armory Exterior Restoration 

Project Map/Parcel Number: 326 / 004 

Estimated Start Date: Summer 2025 

Estimated Completion Date: Fall 2026 

Purpose (please circle all that apply): 

Open Space Public 

Community Housing Private 

Historic Non-Profit 

Recreation Partnership (Describe below #3) 

Town Affiliation** 

**Please Note:  All Town CPC Applications must be approved by the Town Manager prior to submission 
 

Applicant Contact: 

Name: Mark R. Marinaccio, AIA Town Architect 

Organization (if applicable): Town of Barnstable 

Address: 800 Pitchers Way, Hyannis 02601 

Mailing Address: same as above 

Daytime Phone #: 508-328-5064 

E-mail Address: mark.marinaccio@town.barnstable.ma.us 

 

Primary Contact (if different from applicant contact): 

Name: Mark R. Marinaccio, AIA, Town Architect 

Address: 800 Pitchers Way, Hyannis 02601 

Mailing Address: same as above 

Daytime Phone #: 508-328-5064 

E-mail Address: mark.marinaccio@town.barnstable.ma.us 

 

Budget Summary: 

Total budget for project: $2,900,000 

CPA funding request: $2,900,000 

Matching funds (committed/under consideration):   Projects #18063 ($200,175), and #18096 ($667,000) for 

design and asbestos abatement  

Appropriated CPA funds require one or more deed restrictions (conservation / historic preservation / housing). If the 

restriction is prepared by the applicant, the first draft of the restriction should be provided to the CPC Coordinator. If 

the applicant is not preparing the restriction, a consultant will contact the applicant to assist in the drafting of the 

appropriate restriction after funds are appropriated. The Town of Barnstable Legal Department and Legal 

Consultant shall review and approve the restriction prior to the final commitment of the CPA funds to the project. 

 



CPC APPLICATION (page  2 )  
 

 

Please address the following questions: 

1. Project summary (description and goals): 

Currently used for cold storage, this project continues the restoration of the historic and culturally significant 

Hyannis Armory. Funding provided in 2018, and 2019, began the multi-phase process of converting the 

armory from its existing state into a totally renovated space, which will eventually house the Executive and 

Legislative Branches of Town government.  A large 250 seat community gathering space is included in the 

design. 

 

This Community Preservation Fund request will address exterior restoration of the building. Work will include 

masonry repair, windows, door, and roof restoration / replacement work making the building weather tight in 

preparation for future improvements. 

 

2. How does this project help preserve Barnstable’s character? 

In conformance with the General Project Criteria, the Barnstable Armory Project: 

• Preserves the essential character of the town 

• The restoration will save a resource that would otherwise be threatened 

• Demonstrates practicality in utilizing an existing town resource far below the budgets required to 

construct a new building 

• The adaptive reuse of existing historic buildings is a prime example of an advantageous cost/benefit 

value. 

• This funding request will help to leverage matching funds that have been provided for design and 

asbestos abatement. 

• The Town of Barnstable and the Town Manager has been a consistent supporter of the effort to 

adaptively reuse the armory. 

 
3. Partnership(s) Description: Not applicable to this project. 

 

4. Provide a detailed project timeline: 

Design/Bid: Summer 2025 

Construction: Winter 2025 – Fall 2026 

Project Closeout: Fall 2026 

 

5. How does this project meet the General Criteria and Category Specific Criteria for CPC projects? 

The exterior restoration of this culturally significant building will save an important town resource that 

continues to face the threat of demolition. For a relatively minimal investment the armory can be protected for 

future rehabilitation as a town facility. As a handsome, existing Mid-Century structure with a large, open 

interior space, it is far more advantageous to protect the town’s interests by protecting the structure for future 

development. 

 

Additionally, President-elect John F. Kennedy gave his victory speech at the Hyannis Armory on the morning 

of November 9, 1960, after he learned that he had been elected President of the United States. This project 

will preserve the location of that very important cultural event, which led to what has been characterized in 

popular culture as the “Camelot” years at the White House, and which is now an important stop on the 

Kennedy Legacy Trail. The integral association of the Kennedy family with the town of Hyannis has, for over 



CPC APPLICATION (page  3 )  
 

have a century, helped to establish the character of Hyannis, and Barnstable, as an open and accepting 

community with strong ties to the ideals of equality and fairness.                 



CPC APPLICATION (page  4 )  
 

6. Provide a detailed budget, including the following information, as applicable:  (Fiscal Year, Total Cost, CPC 

Funds Requested, Other Sources of Funding sought and received, and cost estimates/quotes received): 

 

Please see Attachment “A” 

 

7. Assessor’s office identification map and map and parcel number: 

 Map and Parcel Number:  326 / 004 

 
 

 

___________________________________________________ _________________ 

Signature of Applicant Date 

 

___________________________________________________ _________________ 

Signature of Applicant Partner Date 

 

___________________________________________________ _________________ 

Signature of Town Manager (Town Affiliated Projects) Date 

  



CPC APPLICATION (page  5 )  
 

PHOTOGRAPHS: 

 

Figure 1.  Exterior View 

 

 

Figure 2.  Masonry damage caused by failing steel lintels 



CPC APPLICATION (page  6 )  
 

 

Figure 3.  Typical damaged metal window with asbestos caulking 






















	04-28 COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE.pdf (p.1-3)
	2024-EOY-SIGNED-Report to CPC.pdf (p.4-11)
	DRAFT CPC MINUTES - March 17, 2025 final.pdf (p.12-17)
	SignedLOI-2025transferApp.pdf (p.18)
	CPC LOI Mill Pond Preserve 4.14.2025.pdf (p.19-21)
	Letter Of Interest - Cotuit Memorial Park Improvements 11082024.pdf (p.22-23)
	CPC Letter re Cotuit Memorial Park 4.23.25 .pdf (p.24)
	BCA_OddFellowsBuilding_Proposal.pdf (p.25-27)

